

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

# ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

## Ninety-fifth Legislature

OF THE

# STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with subsection VI of section 26 of chapter 9 of the Revised Statutes of 1944.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL  
AUGUSTA, MAINE  
1951

---

---

**PUBLIC LAWS**

OF THE

**STATE OF MAINE**

As Passed by the Ninety-fifth Legislature

**1951**

---

---

## Chapter 240

### AN ACT Relating to Cooperative Agricultural Extension Work.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 27, § 237, amended. Section 237 of chapter 27 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 237. Manner in which work may be carried on. Cooperative agricultural extension work shall consist of the giving of practical demonstrations in agriculture and home economics, and imparting information on said subjects through field demonstrations, publications and otherwise; and this work shall be carried on in each county in such manner as may be mutually agreed upon by the executive committee of the ~~farm bureau of such~~ county extension association, provided for in section 238, and the trustees of the University of Maine, College of Agriculture, or their duly appointed representatives.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 27, § 238, amended. Section 238 of chapter 27 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 238. Organizations to be known as "county extension associations" to be formed. For the purpose of carrying out the provisions of sections 236 to 240, inclusive, there may be created in each county or combination of 2 counties within the state an organization to be known as a "farm bureau," in the following manner: ~~whenever a number not less than 200 of bona fide rural residents within any county or combination of 2 counties in the state shall have effected temporary organization for doing extension work in agriculture and home economics,~~ and "county extension association," and its services available to all residents of a county. Such county extension association shall have adopted a constitution and set of by-laws acceptable to the University of Maine, College of Agriculture, and they shall be recognized as the official body within said county or counties for carrying on extension work in agriculture and home economics within said county or counties in cooperation with the University of Maine, College of Agriculture. Such organization may make such regulations and by-laws for its government and the carrying on of its work as are not inconsistent with the provisions of said sections; ~~provided that any county farm bureau or other county organization within any of the counties in the state that is now doing extension work in agriculture and home economics in cooperation with the University of Maine, College of Agriculture, upon complying with the provisions of this section, shall be the recognized farm bureau of the county or counties where it is located, and provided further that but one such organization shall be formed in each county.'~~

Sec. 3. R. S., c. 27, § 239, amended. Section 239 of chapter 27 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 239. County extension association to prepare budget; county commissioners may levy tax. The executive committee of each county ~~farm bureau~~ extension association shall annually prepare an annual financial budget for the 12 months beginning January 1st next thereafter, showing in detail its estimate of the amount of money to be expended under the provisions of sections 236 to 240, inclusive, within the county or counties for such 12 months; shall submit the same to a vote of the ~~bureau~~ association at the regular annual meeting and, if the budget is approved by a majority vote of the members of the ~~bureau~~ association present at such meeting, the executive committee shall submit the same to the board of county commissioners on a date in December approved by said county commissioners, and the county commissioners ~~shall~~ may, if they deem it justifiable, include the amount of this budget in the appropriations by them annually recommended, and levy a tax therefor; provided ~~further~~, however, that the amount thus raised by direct taxation within any county or combination of counties for the purposes of sections 236 to 240, inclusive, shall be not less than \$1,000 and not more than \$2,000 annually. Provided, however annually per county extension agent; provided further, that in these counties having the services of more than ~~a~~ extension agents at the request of the county ~~farm bureau~~ extension association made on the said date in December, the county commissioners of the county may allow an amount in excess of \$2,000, but not exceeding \$4,000 the minimum specified, which shall also be included in the budget and for which a tax shall be levied. These funds shall be used for the maintenance of the county extension service, including salaries of agents and clerks, office rental, supplies, equipment, postage, telephone, and for such other expenses as necessary to maintain an efficient and effective county extension service. Whenever the inhabitants of 2 counties shall unite for organization in one ~~farm bureau~~ association the amount of the tax assessed upon each county shall be in the proportion which the ~~number of farm bureau members~~ last state valuation in that county bears to the total ~~number of members~~ of the last state valuation in the 2 counties so united.'

Sec. 4. R. S., c. 27, § 240, amended. Section 240 of chapter 27 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 240. Annual report to be rendered to trustees of University of Maine, College of Agriculture and to county commissioners. It shall be the duty of each said county ~~farm bureau~~ described in the preceding sections extension association, annually, on or before the 10th day of December, to present its plan of extension work for the ensuing year and to render

to both the trustees of the University of Maine, College of Agriculture, and the county commissioners a full detailed report of its extension activities for the preceding fiscal year, including a detailed report of its receipts and expenditures from all sources; and the financial report of such county ~~farm bureau~~ extension association shall be on such forms as may be prescribed by the trustees of the University of Maine, College of Agriculture.'

Effective August 20, 1951

---

---

## Chapter 241

### AN ACT Relating to Liens on Electric Motors.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

R. S., c. 164, § 68, amended. Section 68 of chapter 164 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 68. Lien on watches, clocks, jewelry, radio equipment and electric motors. Every individual, partnership or corporation, having an established place of business in this state, engaged in making, altering, or repairing any watch, clock, jewelry, ~~and~~ or any kind of radio equipment or electric motor, or expending any labor or materials thereon, shall have a lien upon said watch, clock, jewelry, ~~or~~ radio equipment or electric motor for a reasonable compensation for said labor and materials, which shall take precedence of all other claims and incumbrances, and such watch, clock, jewelry, ~~or~~ radio equipment or electric motor shall be exempt from attachment or execution until such lien and the cost of enforcing it are satisfied.'

Effective August 20, 1951

---

---

## Chapter 242

### AN ACT Relating to Merger, Consolidation and Conversion of National Banks and Trust Companies.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

R. S., c. 55, §§ 139-A - 139-J, additional. Chapter 55 of the revised statutes is hereby amended by adding thereto 10 new sections to be numbered 139-A to 139-J, inclusive, to read as follows:

'Sec. 139-A. Resulting national bank. Nothing in the law of this state shall restrict the right of a trust company to merge with or convert into a